
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ADVANCE PUBLICATION OF 
REPORTS 

 
 
 

This publication gives five clear working days’ notice of the decisions listed below. 
 

These decisions are due to be signed by individual Cabinet Members 
and operational key decision makers. 

 
Once signed all decisions will be published on the Council’s 

Publication of Decisions List. 
 
 
 
 

 
1. NEW LETTING – JOHN WILKES HOUSE & 2 ORCHARD RD CAR PARK  

(Pages 1 - 24) 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

PL2223_017_KD3432 Part 1  

PART 1 Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
London Borough of Enfield 

 
Title:  Operational KD 3432 

New Letting – John Wilkes House & 2 Orchard Rd Car 
Park 

Report to: 
 

Executive Director for Housing, Regeneration & 
Development – Sarah Cary (in consultation with Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Property)  
 

Date of Report 
briefing: 

18 May 2023 

Director:  James Wheeler 
Report Author: James Hall     james.hall@enfield.gov.uk 
Ward(s) 
affected: 

Edmonton 

Key Decision 
Number  

KD 3432   

Implementation 
date, if not 
called in: 

14th June 2023 

Classification: Part I Public 
 

Reason for 
exemption 

The Part II report contains information that is 
commercially sensitive and could be prejudicial to the 
interests of both the Council and potential buyers. 

 
 
Purpose of Report  

 
1. To approve the new letting of John Wilkes House & 2 Orchard Road car park, 

which have been declared surplus to operational requirements, following a 
period of open marketing, to preferred Bidder ‘A’ and on terms set out in the 
Confidential Appendix.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



PL2223_017_KD3432 Part1  

Recommendations 
 

Background and Options 

2. The proposal to lease John Wilkes house is a variation to the disposal 
agreed by Cabinet, under KD 5189 in September 2020.  The variation was 
agreed as part of a budget paper that went to Council in February 2023 and 
was subsequently approved to let the property. 

3. John Wilkes House was previously occupied by the Housing Services 
department until late 2020, and then more recently by Behavioural Support 
Services (BSS) as an interim occupation before moving into new premises. 

4. The subject property forms part of a list of properties authorised for disposal 
in 2020/21 as part of KD 5189 by Cabinet approval dated 14.10.2020.   
However, in 2022, in response to the significant increase to the cost of 
government borrowing that put new pressure on the Council revenue budget, 
Finance and Property agreed to consider retaining some surplus assets for 
letting the property for a retained rental income (revenue) instead of a capital 
receipt on disposal. 

5. The option to rent theoretically presented a better return than investing the 
anticipated capital receipt or paying down borrowing costs.  Therefore, the 
option to retain for rental revenue as opposed to a capital receipt is now 
considered instead of a disposal, the variation to which was agreed by 
Council as part of a budget paper in February 2023.  

6. The property has been subsequently widely marketed for letting interest by 
our local agents and, in addition to the usual channels (email shots, 
telephone calls and property websites).  We have sent details out to over 500 
community & voluntary sector groups using the Council’s own databases 
seeking expressions of interest for letting. 

7. There was a reasonable level of interest among independent educational and 
voluntary sector organisations, as well as a couple of business users (one 
serviced office operator and an electrical wholesaler) such that best bids 
were called on 3rd March 2023.  These bids that are described in more detail 
within Part II of this report. 

8. Discussions have also taken place with colleagues in the HRA about the 
possibility of retaining the property for conversion to temporary housing but 
that is not a suitable option. 

I. Agree the new letting of John Wilkes House to Bidder ‘A’ as preferred 
bidder in accordance with the Heads of Terms appended to the confidential 
Part II report. 

 
II. Authorise the Director of Property to finalise non-material changes to the 

Heads of Terms, including such variations that may be necessary to cover 
existing third-party rights affecting the property.  
 

III. To note that all agreements to be entered into as contemplated by this 
report are to be approved in advance of commencement by Legal Services 
on behalf of the Director of Law and Governance.  
 

Page 2



PL2223_017_KD3432 Part1  

Preferred Option and Reasons for Preferred Option 

9. The option to rent theoretically presents a better return than investing the 
anticipated capital receipt or paying down borrowing costs.  Therefore, the 
option to retain for rental revenue as opposed to a capital receipt is now 
recommended.  

10. Analysis of the various offers received for letting was undertaken, based on 
the offer level and conditionality, consideration of social value and 
assessment of the bidders’ credentials and deliverability. 

11. Bidder ‘A’ was the highest offer received; was credible and offered additional 
benefits and the therefore recommended for approval.  Further details of the 
assessment of the bids is contained in the Confidential Appendix. 

Relevance to Council Plans and Strategies 

12. The letting of the property will deliver additional revenue income and help 
reduce Council borrowing costs.  

Financial Implications 

13. A review of the letting vs disposal options shows letting would generate an 
additional net revenue benefit of £65k over 20 years, or an average £3k per 
annum, as well allowing the Council to retain the asset and sell at a future 
date should it choose to do so.   
 

14. The letting option is therefore preferable as it would generate additional 
revenue income as well as allowing the Council to retain the asset. 

 
15. The Council’s 2023/24 budget includes an assumption of £7.2m capital 

receipts in 2023/24 to offset borrowing and fund specific transformation 
programmes. If this is not achieved, there will be an additional pressure on 
the Council’s revenue budget via interest costs and provisions to repay debt. 

 
16. The bid satisfies requirements to generate best value, as stipulated by the 

Local Government Act 1972, due to competitive bidding process which 
generated the highest bid which was accepted. 

 
17. There is £17k of existing borrowing related to the site, which will be funded 

from the capital receipt. 
 
18. Further financial details are provided in the Confidential Appendix. 

(Financial Implications provided by MJ on 15.05.2023). 

Legal Implications 

19. Pursuant to S.123 of the Local Government Act 1972 the Council has the 
power to dispose of land in any manner it wishes, subject to certain 
provisions.  A disposal in this context includes the granting of a lease. 
 

20. Any disposal of property must also comply with the Council’s Constitution, 
including its Property Procedure Rules which set out mandatory procedures 

Page 3



PL2223_017_KD3432 Part1  

regarding (amongst other things) the acquisition, management and disposal 
of property assets.  The process undertaken as set out in this report assists 
in demonstrating that in leasing the property upon the terms set out in the 
Heads of Terms represents best consideration. 
 

21. The Council also has a general power of competence under section 1(1) of 
the Localism Act 2011 to do anything that individuals may do, provided it is 
not prohibited by legislation. A local authority may exercise the general power 
of competence for its own purpose, for a commercial purpose and/or for the 
benefit of others. This power encompasses the power for the Council to enter 
into contracts. 
 

22. Public law principles will apply to the decisions made by the Council, 
including the Council’s duty to take account of its fiduciary duty and to act 
prudently. The Council is also under a general duty to act reasonably and 
show that its decisions are made after having given due and proper 
consideration to all relevant factors. 
 

23. It is noted that the property was marketed by way of an informal tender 
process seeking offers for the granting of a lease of the premises by the 
Council.  Furthermore, that Bidder A achieved the highest evaluation score 
and has been selected as the preferred bidder, representing best 
consideration reasonably obtainable.  The justification for selection of Bidder 
A is set out both in this report and the Confidential Appendix. 
 

24. The form of Lease must be approved by Legal Services on behalf of the 
Director of Law and Governance. 
 

25. The Council has acted in accordance with the Public Sector Equality Duty 
under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 and has had due regard to this 
when carrying in arriving at this decision. 
 

26. The proposals contained within this report are within the Council’s powers 
and duties. 

(Legal implications inserted by JH (Legal Dept) based on version of report circulated 
on 26th May 2023) 

Equalities Implications  

27. Corporate advice has been sought regarding equalities and an agreement has 
been reached that an equalities impact assessment is neither relevant nor 
proportionate for the approval of this report. 

HR and Workforce Implications 

28. There are no workforce implications. 

Environmental and Climate Change Implications 

29. The winning bidder’s proposal is to rent the building from LBE and reuse it for 
non-domestic purposes. The proposed use is not expected to dramatically 
increase the energy consumption of the site. 

Page 4



PL2223_017_KD3432 Part1  

 
30. As the site has a high embodied carbon content due to the construction type, 

from a carbon emissions standpoint retaining the building in its current form 
may be preferable to proposals that involve major development or demolition 
of the site, unless these works were done with careful consideration for 
minimising carbon. 

 
31. The site has an EPC of D which, demonstrating the site would benefit from 

energy and decarbonisation upgrades, it is unknown if the bidder proposes to 
make energy or decarbonisation improvements to the site. Alternative 
options, such as PD change of use, may have had a negative energy cost 
impact for occupants without significant upgrades. 

Public Health Implications (if any) 

32. There are no public health implications. 

Property Implications 

33. Property implications are within the main body of this report and accompanying 
Part II (confidential) paper. 

34. The freehold interest is being let subject to a 20 year FRI lease term with a 
tenant option break at year 10.  

Summary & Conclusions 

35. John Wilkes House and 2 Orchard Road Car Park is surplus to the Council’s 
operational needs. 

36. In response to the significant increase to the cost of government borrowing 
that put new pressure on the Council’s revenue budget, Finance and 
Property agreed to consider retaining some surplus assets to let for a 
retained income (revenue) instead of a capital receipt on disposal. 

37. Following a marketing process, for letting, this report seeks approval to 
proceed with Bidder ‘A’ based on analysis of the offers received and initial 
due-diligence on the preferred bidder’s ability to commit to the lease 
obligations.  

 

Report Author: James Hall 
 Principal Development manager 
 James.hall@enfield.gov.uk 
 0208 132 1720 
 
Appendices 

Letting Particulars  
Part II Report – Confidential Appendix 
 
Background Papers 

n/a 

Page 5

mailto:James.hall@enfield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

   

 

TO LET 
SELF‐CONTAINED OFFICE BUILDING 
Suitable for Alternative Uses Subject to Planning 
 
 

10,813 Sq Ft  

John Wilkes House, 79 High Street, Ponders End, EN3 4EN 

Location 
The property is situated on the east side of the High Street a quarter of a mile 
south of the  junction with Southbury Road, which provides access to the A10 
Great Cambridge Road and thereby the M25 (junction 25) to the north and the 
A406  North  Circular  Road  to  the  south.   Ponders  End  and  Southbury  Road 
overground stations are within walking distance providing regular services  to 
London Liverpool Street via Tottenham Hale and Seven Sisters (Victoria Line). 
Southbury Road bus terminal is also within walking distance. 
 
The property  is situated adjoining a small retail park where occupiers  include 
Asda  and  Farm  Foods  while  Ponders  End  High  Street  provides  a  range  of 
convenience shopping, cafes, restaurants and a Tesco supermarket. 
 
 
 
Description 
The building is a detached 2 storey building providing offices as a mixture 
of open plan and cellular space over 2 floors with 2 entrances on the north 
and south elevation.  The specification includes suspended ceilings, central 
heating,  comfort  cooling, perimeter  trunking, double  glazing,  tea points 
and passenger lift. 
The building falls within Class E planning use and therefore suitable for a 
range  of  uses  including  offices,  retail,  health  centre,  day  nursery,  day 
centre, and gymnasium. Other uses may be suitable subject to planning for 
a change of use. There are 14 parking spaces available Monday to Friday 
between  the hours of 8‐00 am and 6‐00 pm. Additional parking may be 
available nearby by separate negotiation. 

P
age 7



 

 

 
 

 

Area 
The building has the following approximate gross 
internal areas: 
 

Ground Floor: 5,553         sq ft 

First Floor:    5,260         sq ft 

Total:      10,813        sq ft 

 
Lease  
The entire building is available to lease for a minimum 
term of 10 years on a full repairing and insuring basis 
outside the security of tenure and compensation 
provisions of the Landlord & Tenant Act 1954 Part II. 

 

Rent 
Offers in excess of  £150,000 per annum exclusive. 
 
 
 

Business Rates 
The property has a Rateable Value of £134,000. 

 
Energy Performance Certificate 

 

 
Legal Costs  
Each party to be responsible for their own legal 
costs in relation to this transaction. 
 
 
 
 

CLIFF BONNETT 
 
020 8342 2700 
cliff@sbhpageread.co.uk 

Viewing/Further Information: 
Strictly by appointment through sole 
agents sbh Page & Read: 

BEN PATER 
 
020 8342 2700 
ben@sbhpageread.co.uk 

CAB11196par 

sbh Page & Read conditions under which particulars are issued. 
 
Notice sbh Page & Read for themselves and for the vendors or lessors of this property for whom they act, give notice that:‐ 
(I) These particulars are a general outline for the guidance of prospective purchasers or tenants, and do not constitute the whole or any part of an offer or contract; (II) sbh Page & Read cannot guarantee the 
accuracy of any description, dimensions, references to condition, necessary permissions for use and occupation and other details contained herein, and prospective purchasers or tenants must not reply upon 
them as statements of facts or representations and must satisfy themselves as to their accuracy; (III) No person  in the employment of sbh Page & Rad has any authority to make or give any presentation or 
warranty whatever in relation to this property; (IV) All rents, prices or other charges given are exclusive of vat; (V) Any plant, machinery, equipment, services, fixtures or fittings referred to have not been tested 
unless specifically stated and prospective purchasers or tenants should satisfy themselves as to the fitness of such items for their requirement. 
 
sbh Page & Read is a trading name of Haywood & Bonnett Limited.  Company Registration no. 6449682. Registered Office: 167 Turners Hill, Cheshunt, Herts. EN8 9BH. 

P
age 8



 

 

P
age 9



 

 

For identification purposes only 

P
age 10



 

 

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

STAGE 1– Initial Screening. 

 

Details of Officer completing this form: 

Name: James Job Title: Sen Surv Date: 03.03.23 

Dept: PLACE Service: SPS   

What change is being proposed?  Provide a brief description (and title if applicable) 

To sell a surplus property for which we have cabinet approval.  It will be marketed 
on the open market advertised on-line and with a Sale Board. 

The bids will be assessed based on price and deliverability. 

Does the proposal? 

Affect service users, employees or the wider 
community 

  YES   NO 

Have a significant impact on how services are 
delivered 

  YES   NO 

Plan to withdraw a service, activity or presence   YES   NO 

Plan to introduce a new service or activity   YES   NO 

Aim to improve access to, or the delivery of a service   YES   NO 

Involve a significant commitment of resources   YES   NO 

Relate to an area where there are known inequalities   YES   NO 

If you have answered NO to all of the questions above then the screening 
process is complete and you do not need to complete a Full Equality Impact 
Assessment or Action Plan.  This decision must be signed off by your Head 
of Service. 

Sign off by Head of Service: 

Name: 
Adrian 
Smallwood 

Signature: 

 

Date: 03.03.2023 

Please note:   If equality issues are identified during the course of the policy, plan 
or practice development/review, the EqIA Initial Screening will need to be revisited.  
This may result in a full EqIA being required where it previously was not. 

Before carrying out a full assessment as set out under ‘stage 2’, please complete 
an initial screening form, ‘stage 1,’ to see if it is necessary to carry out an equality 
impact assessment for your decision/ activity/ project.  
 

Page 23



 

Page 24


	Agenda
	1 New Letting – John Wilkes House & 2 Orchard Rd Car Park
	Pt 1 App 1 Letting Particulars John Wilkes House
	PL2223_017 KD3432 _Letting of John Wilkes House _Pt2
	CONFIDENTIAL Pt 2 App 1 - Draft HoTs to DIYhomedecorations
	CBH EQIA Stage 1 - signed


